HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 6, 2013

1:32 p.m
1:32: 37 PM
CALL TO ORDER
Co-Chair Austerman called the House Finance Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 1:32 p.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara
Representative Lindsey Hol nes
Representative Cat hy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanme W/ son
VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki, Alternate
ALSO PRESENT
Don Smith, Self, Anchorage; Tom Doran, Self, Seward.
PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Lisa Herbert, Executive Director, Fairbanks Chanber of
Conmmer ce, Fairbanks; Al dean Kilborn, Self, Fairbanks; Eva
Nor wood, Key Coal i tion, Fai r banks; Ni chol as d ark,
University of Alaska- Community and Technical Coll ege,
Fai r banks; Jim Dodson, Pr esi dent, Fai r banks  Economi c
Devel opnent Cor por at i on, Fai r banks; Perry Ahsogeak,
Behavioral Health Director, Fairbanks Native Association,
Fai r banks; Luke Hopkins, Mayor, Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough, Fairbanks; Joe Want, Self, Fairbanks; Snokey Don
Duncan, Sel f, Fai r banks; Christina Davis, | ndependent
Living Advocate, Access Alaska; Gary Laursen, Director,

House Fi nance Committee 1

03/06/13 1:32 P.M



Honors Program University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks;
Colin Oner, Self, Fairbanks; Chris Piech, Self, Fairbanks;
Cecilia Bates Hudson, Self, Fairbanks; Bedusha Thonas,
Sel f, Fairbanks; Taber Rehbaum Arctic Alliance for Peopl e,
Fai rbanks; N ck Gasa, Self, Fairbanks; John Regitano,
Executive Director, Famly Centered Services of Al aska,
Fai r banks; Angel a Li nn, Pr esi dent, Museuns Al aska,
Fai r banks; Audrey  Jones, Pr esi dent, Fai rbanks Native
Associ ation, Fairbanks; Cheryl Keepers, Self, Fairbanks;
Emly Vockeroth, Self, Fai r banks; Martha Rich, Self,
Fai rbanks; Phil Osborn, Self, Fairbanks; Stephen Fink,
St udent , UAF- CTC Paranedic Acadeny, Fai r banks; MWl es
Jellison, Student, UAF-CTC Paranmedic Acadeny, Fairbanks;
Kraig Bryan, Student, UAF-CTC Paranedi c Acadeny, Fairbanks;
M chael Smi t h, St udent , UAF- CTC Par anedi ¢ Acadeny
Fai r banks; Chuck Kuhns, Paramedic Coordinator, Paranedic
Acadeny, University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Don
Gray, Self, Fairbanks; Mirray Richnond, Self, Fairbanks;
Marie Mtchall, Self, Fairbanks; Ashlie Theisen; Shawston
Runk, Selves, Fairbanks; Paul Beals, Self, Fairbanks;
Gunnar Ebbeson, Oawner, Turning Point Counseling Services,
Fai r banks; Stephanie Little WlIf, Self, Fairbanks; Jono
Stewart, Energy  Project Manager , Fai r banks Econom ¢
Devel opnent Corporation, Fairbanks; Alan Batten, Self,
Fai rbanks; Sandy Sol enberger, Volunteer Chairman, North
Sl ope Imagination Library, Barrow, Patuk @ enn, Miseum
Curator, North Slope Borough Inupiat Heritage Center,
Barrow, Judi Ruder, dinician, Behavioral Health, Unal aska;
Danita Koehler, Self, Dry Creek; Bryce Wigley, Al aska Farm
Bureau, Delta; David Flynn, Self, Delta; Carol Dufendauch,
Delta Imagination Library, Delta; Kristin MIler, Co-Chair,
Delta Inmagination Library, Delta; Jasmne Wll, Co-Chair,
Delta I magination Library, Delta; Rose Loera, City Mnager,
DI lingham Dan Pasquariello, Chief of Police, Dillingham
Robin Chaney, Self, Dillingham Jean ElIlis, President,
Pet ersburg Borough School District, Petersburg; Marlene
Cushing, Wnen Against Violence Everywhere, Petersburg;
Sunny Rice, Coordinator, Al aska Young Fishernmen's Summt,
Sitka; Jerry Stuber, Self, Pet er sbur g; Kim Kil kenny,
Clinician, Petersburg Mntal Health Services, Petersburg;
Max Wor hat ch, Pr esi dent, Uni t ed Sout heast Al aska
Gllnetters, Petersburg; Brian Lynch, Executive D rector,
Pet ersburg Vessel Owners, Petersburg; Dr. Robert Thomason,
Superi nt endent , Pet er sbur g Bor ough School District,
Pet er sburg; Susan Chner, Director, Petersburg Mental Health
Services, Petersburg; Jerry Dzugan, Self, Sitka; Marjorie
Hennessey, Self, Sitka; Tracy Gagnon, Coordinator, Fish to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



School , Sit ka; Clarice Johnson, Sel f, Sit ka; El |l en
Frankenstein, Self, Sitka;, Gayle Young, Self, Sitka; Lisa
Busch, Executive Director, Sitka Sound Science Center,
Sitka; Lee Bennet, Director, Sitka Conmmunity Hospital,

Sit ka; Fred Fayette, Sel f, Sit ka; Scot t Wagner ,
Representati ve, Nort hern Sout heast Regional Aguaculture
Association, Sitka; Dorrie Ferrell, Menber, Easter G oup,
Sitka; Sue Hill, President, Association of Al aska School
Boards, Fairbanks; Steve Bradshaw, Teacher, Sitka; Susan
Smal ley, Self, Kenai; Katie Wiles, Peninsula Comunity

Heal th, Kenai; Twyla Bentley, Self, Kenai; Margaret Parrot,
Self, Soldotna; Lucy Gaham Self, Kenai; Tina Draper,
Self, Kenai; Sammy Crawford, Board Menber, Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough School Board, Kenai; Mary Toutonghi, Self, Kenaij;
Joe Cannava, Director, Peninsula Conmunity Health Services,

Kenai; Melissa Baker, Student, Kenai Peninsula College
(KPC), Kenai ; Shauna  Thort on, University  of Al aska
Anchorage, Coalition Student Leaders, Kenai; Pete Sprague,
KPC, Kenai ; Scot  Weat, Sel f, Honer ; Kim Burrows,

| ndependent Living Center, Honer; Elanna Sena, Parent,
Honer; Rick Malley, I|ndependent Living Center (I1LC), Homer;
Rachel Ronmberg, Haven House, Honer; Liz Downing, KPC,
Honer; Robert Letson, South Peninsula Hospital, Homer;
Susan Drat hman, South Peninsula Behavioral Health Services,
Honmer; Rachelle MAl exander, Kachemak Bay College, Honer;
Bonnie Betley, Best Beginnings, Honer; Maria Calhoun,
Sprout, Honmer; M chael Horton, Behavioral Health, Copper
Center; Victoria Kildal, Counselor, Copper River Native
Associ ation, Copper Center; Sharron Ables, Online Wth
Libraries (OAL), dennallen; Sherri Cox, Crossroad Medical
Center, d ennal | en; Laurie  Thonas, Best Begi nni ngs,
Ket chi kan; Lanetta Lundberg, Ketchikan Medical Center,
Ketchikan; Bill Auger, Commercial Fisherman, Ketchikan;
Emly Chapel, SAIL, Ket chi kan; Kevin Gadsey, SAlL,
Ket chi kan; Patricia Chapman, Sel f, Ket chi kan; Jessi
Chapman, Sel f, Ket chi kan; Charl es Haber bush, Sel f,
Ket chi kan; Jos Govaars, Self, Ketchikan; Bobbie MCreary,
Self, Ketchikan; Vikki Jo Kennedy, Self, Kodiak; Valarie
Ki ngsl and, Al aska Associ ation of School Libraries, Seward;
Melinda Matis, Self, Seward; Kevin Minson, Mt-Su Health
Services, Wasilla; Kelly MBride, Mt-Su School District,
Wasilla; Jim Beck, Access Al aska, Palnmer; Estrella Lee, PAT
Coordi nator, Homer; Ruth Allison Reynol ds, Best Begi nnings,
Honer ; Dave Branding, Chief Executive Oficer, South
Peni nsul a Behavioral Health Services, Honer; Jill Lush,
Director, Sprout Famly Services, Honer; Sonja Mark,
Li brari an, Dllingham Public Library, D | I'i ngham Kay

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



Andrews, Sout hwest Region School District, Dillingham Mary
Jo Joiner, Director, Kenai Community Library, Kenai; M ke
Frost, KPC, Kenai; Dave Jones, Assistant Superintendent,
KPBSD, Kenai; Phillip MIller, KPC, Cooper Landing;, Bob
Martin, Commercial Fisherman, Petersburg; John Bringhurst,
Pet ersburg Borough School District, Petersburg; Jennifer
Ray, Self and Parent, Petersburg; Sarah Bell, Director,
Kettl eson Menori al Li brary, Sitka; Dennis Longstreth,
Commerci al Fisherman, Sitka; John Baird, General Manager,
Sitka Sound Seafoods, Sitka; Getchen CGeist, Thrive Mat-Su
Prevention Coalition, Mat-Su; Celia Harrison, Self, Kenai
El i zabeth Ripl ey, Executive Director, Mat-Su Health
Foundati on, Mat - Su.

SUMVARY

HB 65 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 65 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 66 APPROP: NENTAL HEALTH BUDGET
HB 66 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#hb65

#hb66

HOUSE BI LL NO. 65

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain progr ans, capitalizing funds, amendi ng
appropri ations, and making reappropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE BI LL NO. 66

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensive nental health program and providing for
an effective date."

Co- Chair Austerman di scussed the neeting' s agenda.

FAI RBANKS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



1:34: 26 PM

LI SA HERBERT, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, FAI RBANKS CHAMBER OF
COMVERCE,  FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of the governor's North Slope LNG project and for
i ncluding the governor's anendnent to transfer $125 mllion
from the Al aska Housing Capital Corporation Fund to the
Sustai nable Energy Transmission Supply and Devel opnent
Fund. She stated that the Fairbanks Chanber of Commerce's
nunber one priority was reducing energy costs. She related
that the high cost of energy was driving business away from
her community and had crippled di sposable incone that could
have ot herw se been spent in Al aska.

1: 36: 01 PM

ALDEAN Kl LBORN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified against cuts in the Alaska State Library Budget
to the Online Wth Libraries Program and Tutor.com She
stated that the two prograns should be nade permanent
budget itens, as proposed by the governor. She was
concerned that by cutting the funding, the Legislature was
sending the nessage that rural Alaskans did not deserve
digital equality and related that funding would give "bush”"
communities equal access to the internet. She pointed out
that |ive-honmework help was a cheap way to provide students
with help and that a lot of students accessed Al aska State
Li brary services. She discussed the value and ease of use
of Alaska State Library services.

1: 38: 34 PM

EVA NORWOOD, KEY COALI TI ON, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
expressed the Key Coalition's support for the $450,000 in
funding for the Conplex Behavior Collaborative (CBC). She
poi nted out that the state should not cut funding for this
unique and critical program She expl ained that nost people
with disabilities were easy to care for, but that a small
percentage had chall engi ng behaviors; wthout support, the
chal I enging behaviors escalated into costly problens for
the state. She pointed out that the CBC was providing

support in the forns of expert assessnent, intervention
pl anning, training of famly, professional care givers, as
well as consultations and evaluations. She stated that

funding was allocated to set up the CBC in FY12 and that it
had starting serving Alaskans in FY13. She concl uded that
t he CBC worked and was cost effective.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



1:40: 35 PM

NI CHOLAS CLARK, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA- COVWUNITY AND
TECHNI CAL COLLEGE, FAI RBANKS (via t el econference),
expressed support of funding for the Interior Al aska Area
Health and Education Cooperative (AHEC). He related that
funding AHEC was vital for students in the healthcare
field. He pointed out that AHEC provided small schol arships
and internships in hospitals and care facilities throughout
the state; AHEC al so hel ped students go outside Al aska for
internships in the healthcare field. He added that the
program had hel ped over 2,000 students in 2011-2012.

1:42: 09 PM

JIM DODSON, PRESI DENT, FAI RBANKS ECONOM C  DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATI ON, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the of the governor's package to advance the LNG
trucking project in Fairbanks and for including the
governor's amendnment to transfer $125 mllion from the
Al aska Housing Capital Corporation Fund to the Sustainable
Energy Transm ssion Supply and Devel opnent Fund. He shared
that funding provided Fairbanks with the nmeans to nove the
project forward; he pointed out that the funding was not a
grant, but was a loan. He offered that the funding was
maki ng less than 2 percent interest currently, but that the
| oan would be paid back with 3 percent. He concluded that
the loan was the right thing to do.

1: 43: 27 PM

PERRY  AHSOGEAK, BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH DI RECTOR, FAI RBANKS
NATI VE ASSOCI ATI ON, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding for behavioral health services and
stated that behavioral health had not seen an increase in
funding in several years. He offered that the reduction in
funding could nean the closure of progranms, staff |ayoffs,
and reducing the nunber of people served. He pointed out
that other higher-cost facilities, such as energency roonmns,
woul d see an increase in the nunber of people that would
have to be served if the funding was cut. He relayed that
Alaska already had Ilimted substance abuse treatnent
resources and that a funding cut mght result in people
being sent out of state for treatnent. He spoke about the
ef fectiveness of behavioral health services and urged the
commttee to reconsider budget cuts.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



1: 45: 21 PM

LUKE  HOPKI NS, MAYOR, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of the
LNG facility and the distribution pr oj ect f undi ng
legislation, as well as for including the governor's
amendnent to transfer $125 nmillion from the Al aska Housing
Capi t al Corporation Fund to the Sustainable Energy
Transm ssion Supply and Devel opnent Fund; he pointed out
that the anmendnent would be a loan to help solve the energy
i ssues in Fairbanks and other rural communities.

1:46: 52 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze related that the commttee was m ssing
Representative Quttenberg's presence and requested M.
Hopki ns to pass on the coments on behalf of the commttee.
M. Hopki ns responded t hat he had spoken with
Representative Quttenberg regarding the issues and thanked
Co-Chair Stoltze for his best w shes.

1:47: 38 PM

JOE WANT, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst funding the Department of Natural Resources' (DNR)
Gui de Concession Program He thanked the commttee for
renmoving the fiscal note for the program He pointed out
that DNR already had a system in place that could be
nodified to address any concerns regarding resource
managenent. He related that the concession program was
based on crowding of the resource and trespassing, both of
which could already be addressed under current prograns,
resources, and infrastructure. He discussed the decrease in
license sales in the last few years, as well as a decrease
in the nunber of non-resident noose tags, sheep tags, and
caribou tags. He expressed concern that the program woul d
hand over to an individual managenent policies that were
currently vested by statute in the Board of Gane.

1: 50: 17 PM

SMOKEY DON DUNCAN, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified against funding the Departnent of Nat ur al
Resources' (@uide Concession Program He stated that the
program was not based on resource managenent, wldlife
conservation, or mximzing the value of the resource;

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



furthernore, the program did not satisfy the five criteria
that were used to justify it. He offered that the program
woul d not have wthstood a legal challenge and that 50
percent of the original supporters could no |onger support
the program He pointed out that DNR had never been a gane
manager and that solutions should include broad industry
participation. He thanked the conmttee for not funding the
Gui de Concession Program and urged not revitalizing it.

1: 52: 05 PM

CHRI STI NA DAVI S, | NDEPENDENT LI VI NG ADVOCATE, ACCESS ALASKA
(via teleconference), spoke in support of restoring the
$100, 000 increment for the Centers for |ndependent Living.
She stated that the Centers for |ndependent Living provided
services to over 45 rural communities the prior year, but
that large areas of the state still remained underserved

She pointed out that I|imted funds reduced the already
limted options that Rural Al askans had, particularly anong
seniors and individuals with disabilities. She pointed out
that funding these services would make productive citizens
and reduce costs to the state. She concluded that home and
community based services were proven effective and cost
efficient.

1:53: 35 PM

GARY LAURSEN, DI RECTOR, HONORS PROGRAM UNI VERSI TY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), expressed
support of continued funding for the University of Al aska

the preservation of the UA Press, and a $50,000 addendum
for the University of Al aska's Honors program at UAA, UAF,

and UAS. He pointed out that the press gave publishers an
outlet and related that all royalties of his publications
were going back to the university and into a scholarship
fund that supported undergraduate and graduate students'

education. He stated that 95 percent of the UAF Honors
Program students were graduating and that 90 percent were
staying in Al aska.

1: 55: 47 PM

COLIN OLNER, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in
support of funding the Controllership Program at the
University of Al aska Fairbanks. He pointed out that Al aska
had a critical shortage of trained senior accountants and
controllers and that the demand for these services was

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



expected to rise over the next few days. He related that he
was working for a small conpany that did around $30 mllion
a year in business and pointed out that it was having
trouble finding a controller because of the high demand. He
concluded that the program would help train and devel op
students that were from Al aska, who knew Al aska's econony.

1: 56: 56 PM

CHRIS Pl ECH, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
testified in support of funding the Controllership Program
at the University of Al aska Fairbanks. He shared that
Al aska was currently experiencing a shortage of accountants
and that the addition of the program would neet the need.
He related that a |Iot of senior accountants and controllers
were expected to retire in the next ten years. He concl uded
that the program would help support Al askans and create
nore opportunities.

1:57:45 PM

CECI LI A BATES HUDSON, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference),
spoke in support increasing funding to education. She
expressed the need for Alaska's schools to keep up wth
technol ogy. She discussed how a North Pole school had
i ncorporated career technology I|earning. She shared that
her son, who had Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, was in enrolled in
the North Pole school and was maintaining a 3.8 grade
average; furthernmore, her son was nore exciting about
school than he ever had been before. She stated that the
West Valley and Lathrup school districts did not have the
budget for sonme of these prograns and related how hel pful
they were for young people. She discussed bringing a
student down to Juneau to neet with legislators and rel ated
how t he experience had changed the child.

2: 00: 38 PM

BEDUSHA  THOVAS, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed support of funding for the Interior Al aska Area
Heal th and Education Cooperative (AHEC). She related that
AHEC had been beneficial in to the UAF Paranedi c Acadeny
and had aided the clinical setting. She pointed out that
that the cooperative was a great benefit to students in the
university's externship programin the Lower 48.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



TABER REHBAUM ARCTIC ALLI ANCE FOR PECPLE, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed support of a $200,000 increase
to the Health and Human Services Community Matching Bl ock
Grant and spoke against cutting funding for behavioral
health services, Best Begi nnings, and Parents as Teachers.
She offered that the increase to the matching block grant
would allow Fairbanks to fund all the eligible agencies
that applied for funding; furthernore, the agencies would
provide the services at a fraction of the cost that the
state would incur providing them She shared that
prevention saved noney in the short-termand the | ong-term

2:03: 06 PM

Nl CK GASA, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of a $200,000 increase to the Health and Hunman
Services Community Matching Block Gant and SB 70. He
related that SB 70 anmended the Civil Legal Services Fund to
include 25 percent of the court filing system fees. He
stated that funding to Alaska Legal Services Corporation
(ALSC) provided essential human services, but that ALSC
al so boosted econonmies across the state by $17.8 nmillion
annual ly. He concluded every dollar invested ALSC resulted
in $5 dollars of econom c benefit for its clients.

2:04:14 PM

JOHN REQ TANO, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, FAM LY CENTERED SERVI CES
OF ALASKA, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in support
of restoring the funding cuts to the state's Behavioral
Health Grants. He shared that Famly Centered Services of
Al aska provided nental health and behavi oral heal th
services to children around the state. He opined that the
budget cuts would result in a dramatically negative effect
on social service agencies in the state and that the
network would suffer. He discussed the fragile nature of
the network of social service agencies in Al aska and
pointed out that Famly Centered Services of Al aska had
already received a ten percent cut in 2003; since that
time, there had been no increases in the budget and the
nunber of children the centers served had risen from 100 to
300. He concluded that this was a bad tine to cut already
struggling social service agenci es.

2: 06: 49 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



ANGELA LI NN, PRESIDENT, MJSEUMS ALASKA, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of increasing the
funding for the Al aska State Museumis Grant and Aid Program
to $150,000 and an additional line item of $25,000 to
support the internship program which was currently
included in the Alaska State Museumis Grant and Al d Program
budget. She pointed out that the grant and aid program
supported projects in Alaska nuseuns in the areas of

col | ections care, facility upgr ades, and exhi bi t
devel opment. Over its 32 year history, the program had
provided over 80 of Alaska's cultural institutions wth
funding or i nterns. The funding provided valuable
assistance for Alaska's smaller and rural nuseuns, cultural
centers, visitor centers, hi stori cal soci eti es, and

hi storical holdings. She discussed how the state nuseuns
benefited Al aska's econony, comunities, and cultura
weal t h.

2:08: 44 PM

AUDREY JONES, PRESIDENT, FAI RBANKS NATIVE ASSOCI ATI ON,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified against the
budget cuts to behavioral health services and voiced
support for the Controllership Program at UAF. She rel ated
that approval of the proposed budget would devastate
communities and would create a huge deficit in services.
She shared that the Fairbanks Native Association's
behavioral health services provided a comunity based
option for the substance abuse treatnent of youth, adults,
and famlies. She shared a personal story regarding her own
and her famly's experiences wth substance abuse; with the
hel p of behavioral health services, she was able to turn
her [|ife around. She concluded that detoxification,
residential treatnent, and aftercare services provided a
new start and hope for many famli es.

CHERYL KEEPERS, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed her support for a $200,000 increase to the Hunman
Services Community Mtching Block Gant, an increase in
funding for the early childhood prograns, and the
restoration of funding for behavior health services
prograns. She pointed out that the state dollars were
mat ched by borough and | ocal sources and were |everaged 17
times its value. She stated that Best Beginnings dollars
were well spent in her comunity.

2:12: 02 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



EMLY VOCKEROTH, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
supported the governor's proposed funding for the Best
Begi nnings and Parents as Teachers Prograns. She stated
that her community had greatly benefited from both of the
prograns. She nentioned that Best Beginnings had funded
several projects including inproving literacy education for
childcare providers, establishing a website with multiple
resources, and a comunity wde canpaign to dissem nate
early childhood developnment information. She warned that
the proposed cuts by the Education Subcommttee would
jeopardi ze projects. She offered that the kindergarten
profile for this year indicated that only 17 percent of
Al aska's children arrived at school ready to learn and
opi ned that there was a | ot of work that needed to be done.

2:13: 18 PM

MARTHA  RI CH, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified against the cuts in funding to behavioral health
services. She discussed the 13 different behavioral health
service prograns that she had on a list and stated that she
did not want any of the prograns to be cut. She pointed out
that behavioral health services served individuals wth
mental illnesses, substance abuse disorders, intellectual
and devel opnental disorders, and seniors. She offered that
t he people that behavioral health services served were at a
higher risk for institutional care, which would cost the
state a |l ot nore noney that keeping the social services.

2:14: 49 PM

PH L  OSBORN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
supported restoring the funding for behavioral health
services. He opined that the people who benefited from
these prograns were the neediest in our society and that
the highest function of government was to help those who
needed help nore than others. He discussed the death of
Hugo Chavez and related that he had been guiding light to
hel p the poor anong his citizens.

2:15:54 PM

STEPHEN FI NK, STUDENT, UAF-CTC PARAMEDI C ACADEMY, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), expressed support of funding for the
Interior Alaska Area Health and Education Cooperative
(AHEC). He pointed out that the paranmedic acadeny had a two

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



to three nonth required internship in the Lower 48 and that
AHEC supported the travel costs of the internship, as wel
as orientation at hospitals.

2:16: 48 PM

MYLES  JELLI SON, STUDENT, UAF- CTC  PARAMEDI C  ACADEMY,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for the Interior Alaska Area Health and Education
Cooperative (AHEC). He offered that he was from out of
state and pointed out that the paranedic program at UAF was
a driving factor of why he chose to attend the University
of Al aska. He shared that the support of AHEC provided
students with training and experience to becone conpetent
nmedi cs and all owed the students to go outside the state for
i nternshi ps. He concluded that continued funding would keep
nore students comng in from outside Alaska and would
provi de a steady supply of highly trained EMS professionals
in the state.

2:18: 20 PM

KRAI G BRYAN, STUDENT, UAF-CTC PARAMEDI C ACADEMY, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), spoke in support of funding for the
Interior Alaska Area Health and Education Cooperative
(AHEC). He pointed out that AHEC played a vital role in the
paramedi ¢ program at UAF and that it helped coordinate to
make |ocal healthcare facilities available to students. He
di scussed the financial support AHEC provided for required
i nternshi ps out of the state.

2:19:17 PM

M CHAEL SM TH, STUDENT, UAF-CTC PARAMEDI C ACADEMY FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), spoke in support of funding for the
Interior Alaska Area Health and Education Cooperative
(AHEC). He shared that he had been a volunteer and
professional EMI in the Fairbanks for five years. He
related that he was able to increase his training through
the use of AHEC. He concl uded that when soneone called 911,
they wanted a fully qualified nedical provider to respond
and that the AHEC and the wuniversity would nmake that
happen.

2:19: 58 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



CHUCK KUHNS, PARAMEDI C COORDI NATOR, PARAMEDI C ACADEMY,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed support of funding for the
Interior Alaska Area Health and Education Cooperative
(AHEC) and its regional centers. He related that UAF s
paranedic program was the only nationally accredited
program in the state and trained about 20 students a year;
the program had 90 percent of its students passing the
national test on the first attenpt. He stated that AHEC s
regional center in Fairbanks provided "al nost foundational™
support to the Paranedic Acadeny. He related that AHEC
assisted students wth the expenses of the required
internships outside of Alaska and helped coordinate wth
t he hospitals.

2:21: 17 PM

DON GRAY, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the proposed cuts to behavioral health services and
in support of funding education. He shared that funding
behavi oral health services would prevent state expenditures
in the future that would result from incarceration,
institutionalization, and hospitalization. He relayed that
the future relied on the education of Alaska's children and
urged that public schools were critical for the state's
future.

2:23: 30 PM

MURRAY RICHVOND, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the restoration of adequate funding
for the health and social services and education budgets.
He offered that the sexual assault rate in Al aska was too
hi gh and was sonetines higher than the graduation rate in
certain areas. He stated that people wth problens had
children with the sanme problens and that putting | ess noney
towards the problem did not help. He stated that "throw ng
noney" at problem was not the issue, but that doing nothing
woul d not make them go away.

2:25:04 PM

MARIE M TCHALL, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed support of the restoring funding to behavioral
heal th services, a $200,000 increase to the Human Services
Community Matching Block Grant, an increase in funding for
the early childhood progranms, as well as restoring funding

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



to the Conplex Behavior Col | aborative Program She
supported the testinony of previous testifiers and
di scussed the demand and benefit of behavioral and socia
service prograns. She pointed out that the Key Coalition of
Alaska had data that supported the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative Program She relayed the difficulty of
getting help for a loved one or famly nenber with conpl ex
behavior and stated that the prograns provided stability
and all owed those affected to live a normal Ilife.

2:27: 36 PM

ASHLI E  THEI SEN;, SHAWSTON RUNK, SELVES, FAIRBANKS (via
t el econference), spoke agai nst cuts in funding to
behavioral health services, and supported funding for
mental and substance abuse prograns, particularly the
Wnens and Childrens Center for Inner Healing in Fairbanks.
She related that she was currently a client of the Wnens
and Childrens Center for Inner Healing and that the
services had been life changing for herself, her son, and
her famly. She shared that the treatnent program had
changed a lot of wonen's lives and that it was one of the
only centers in the state that allowed wonen and children
to attend. She relayed a personal story about her
experiences with nmental and substance abuse and expressed a
desire to see treatnent programs continue. She read from a
prepared statenent by Shawston Runk. The statenent rel ayed
concerns that cuts in the budget would have a negative
effect on mental health and substance abuse facilities at
the wonen's and children's center.

2:30: 23 PM

PAUL BEALS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
against the cuts to behavioral health services. He shared
his role on the Comunity Action Planning Commttee, the
Sui ci de Preventi on Taskf or ce, Fai r banks Preventi on
Coalition, as well as Fairbanks Counseling and Adoption. He
related that Fairbanks Counseling and Adoption had lost its
psychiatrist and was unable to replace the position; as a
result, they had lost their ability to serve Medicaid
patients and he had lost his job. He stated that his
experience in the industry was in suicide prevention and
expressed fears that the $8.3 nmillion in funding cuts would
result in lost lives. He pointed to Alaska's high rate of
suicide and offered that the system was "overtaxed." He
concluded that Fai r banks' behavi or al health service

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



organi zati on was going through a nuch needed reorganization
and that the cut would have a very negative effect on that
agency. He concluded that it was difficult to retain
gqualified providers and practitioners and urged that this
was not the tinme to cut funding.

2:33:33 PM

GUNNAR EBBESCON, OWNER, TURNI NG PO NT COUNSELI NG SERVI CES,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke against the budget
cut for behavioral health services. He discussed the DU
Court and the potential of lost funding for that program
He offered that the DU Court was one of the nost
researched and effective prograns in the nation and that it
was very cost effective in conparison to jailing someone.
He stated that the recovery progranms of the court were
intensely nonitored. He related a personal story about how
treatment had helped him and urged the restoration of
funding for behavioral health services. He discussed how
Los Angeles County was experiencing high rates of
individuals in jails with nmental illnesses, which was a
direct result of the lack of funding for nedication.

2:36: 01 PM

STEPHANI E LI TTLE WOLF, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed support of funding for Native
students and famlies and for maintaining control of the
Title 7 Indian Education Funding. She stated that putting
the noney in the sane pool of funds would violate the trust
responsibility that the federal governnment had in the
education of Alaska Native, Anerican Indian, and Native
Hawai i an students. She stated that there were over 2,000
Al askan Native or Anmeri can I ndi an st udent s, whi ch
represented hundreds of tribes, in her school district and
that she was advocating for each one of those students to
have a voice in their own education. She stated that |oca
education agencies currently housed the noney for Title 7
and urged the congressional delegation to take active
neasures to insure that all tribes were represented and
student s’ academic and cultural needs were net. She
acknowl edged the achievenent gap in "our" students and that
it was time for all the stakeholders to beconme proactive
She pointed out that strong developnent in cultura
responsi ve education would help deliver an appropriate and
successful educati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



2:38:19 PM

JOMO STEWART, ENERGY PRQIECT MANAGER, FAI RBANKS ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the governor's anendnent to
transfer $125 mllion from the Al aska Housing Capital
Corporation Fund to the Sustainable Energy Transm ssion
Supply and Devel opnent Fund. He related that the funding
was critical to provide the capital necessary for the
support of the transition to |ower-cost, cleaner burning
North Slope natural gas. He added that the fund transfer
also insured that the Sustainable Energy Transm ssion
Supply and Devel opnent Fund had adequate capitalization in
order to make funds available in the future for other
energy projects in other conmmnities. He concluded that
Fai rbanks realized it was not the only community that had
energy cost and air quality issues.

2:39: 51 PM

ALAN BATTEN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
suppor t of restoring funding to the education and
behavi oral health services budgets. He pointed out that the
future of Al aska was dependent on the education of its
children and that it was an area that deserved funding. He
stated that the pre-K pilot program was receiving favorable
reviews and should be instituted nore broadly instead of
being cut. He offered that support for community based
behavi oral services was very inportant, effective, and cost
effective. He related the high rate of alcoholism
subst ance abuse, and suicide in Al aska. He concluded that
state needed to support these communities based services
wi th stable funding.

2:41: 24 PM

DON SM TH, SELF, ANCHORAGE spoke against the $25 million in
cuts to the Anchorage School District's budget. He pointed
out that there was a constitutional requi renent for
education in Alaska. He discussed the expected reductions
every year to the school district's budget and suggested
that the state | aw be changed so that the school board had
the ability to raise funds. He shared that currently, the
school district had no authority or ability to raise any
kind of noney. He opined that it if the school board was
given taxing authority, it could have the city assenbly add
the needed funding to the taxes of Anchorage. He expressed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



the need for giving nore local control to the school
districts. He offered that the board could vote on issues
with funding as they arose, but stated that "carte bl anche"
authority should not be given. He concluded that there
should be sone way for the district to raise a limted
anount of noney that clearly needed to be raised.

2:44: 30 PM
AT EASE

3:06:10 PM
RECONVENED

SI TKA, PETERSBURG, BARROWN DI LLI NGHAM  UNALASKA, DELTA
JUNCTI ON

3:06: 49 PM

SANDY SOLENBERGER, VOLUNTEER CHAI RVAN, NORTH SLOPE
| MAG NATI ON LI BRARY, BARROW (via teleconference), testified
in support of reinstating funds for Best Beginnings and
Parents as Teachers. She stressed that the progranms served
children ages zero to 4, and pointed out that children had
flourished in these prograns. She explained that the
success of the prograns was directly tied to the training
of the admnistrators of the prograns. She renmarked that
she was able to clearly see which children had conpleted
these early education prograns, based on their high
achi evenments later in life.

3:09: 29 PM

PATUK GLENN, MJSEUM CURATOR, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH | NUPI AT
HERI TAGE CENTER, BARROW (via teleconference), testified in
support for the grants and aide program for nmuseuns in the
Departnment of Education and Early Developnent (DEED)
budget. She stated that the North Slope Borough |Inupiat
Heritage Center was an educational institution that
pronoted and perpetuated Inupiat heritage through nmuseum
operations. She expressed that nuseuns and cultural centers
contributed to the econony and well-being through
enpl oynent and cultural tourism Miseuns educated children
and adults; and enriched communities.

3:11: 25 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



JUDI RUDER, CLIN Cl AN, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, UNALASKA (via
t el econf erence), testified against the $8.3 nillion
behavioral health budget reduction. She stressed that
funding for behavioral health supported prograns |ike
mental health treatnent; substance abuse treatnent; detox
servi ces; services for youth wth severe envotional
di sturbances; peer support services; suicide prevention;
tribal behavioral health services; services for seniors and
el ders; and donestic violence prevention and intervention.
She furthered that behavioral health services encouraged
mental health patients to remain in their home comunities.
She stressed that w thout behavioral health support in the
small communities, those behavioral health patients may be
subjected to incarceration or hospitalization. She felt

that all Alaskans could |ead nmeaningful and productive
lives.
3:14: 36 PM

DANI TA KOEHLER, SELF, DRY CREEK (via teleconference),
testified against the budget reduction for trauma care
funding. She explained that in 2010, Governor Parnell had
signed the regional trauma care |aw. She stressed that sone
energency care service centers were shutting down in the
small villages, due to |ack of funding. Many small villages
and communities did not have easy access to trauma care
facilities, so the broad range of availability was
necessary for the safety of the residents of smal

cormunities. She felt that the trauma care funding and
access to trauma care treatnment would benefit all Al askans.

3:17:24 PM

BRYCE WRI GLEY, ALASKA FARM BUREAU, DELTA (via
tel econference), testified in support of $181,000 for the
Farm to School program He stressed that the Farmto School
program was necessary for children to eat healthy and | ocal
food in schools; while receiving invaluable agriculture
education. He explained that the program was entering its
third year, so the funding was necessary to keep the
program alive. He stressed that his request was not an
i ncrease, but perhaps left out of a recent bill due to a
clerical error.

3:19:18 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



DAVI D FLYNN, SELF, DELTA (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for the Conplex Behavior Coll aborative.
He explained that the cost of psychiatric facilities was
much higher than |ocal preventative costs. He explained
that there were many applicants for the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative, wth very good success of famlies that
i ncluded people with behavioral health issues. He shared a
story of an autistic child' s famly who had benefitted from
the Dbehavioral health counseling and funding from the
Conpl ex Behavi or Col | aborati ve.

3:24:39 PM

CAROL DUFENDAUCH, DELTA | MAG NATION LIBRARY, DELTA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for early
chi | dhood education. She spoke specifically for the Best
Begi nnings. She remarked that it was inportant to read to
children, beginning at a very young age, in order to
encourage proper literacy and learning skills.

3:25:46 PM

KRISTIN MLLER, CO CHAIR, DELTA | MAG NATI ON LI BRARY, DELTA
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
Best Begi nnings. She asked that the Best Begi nnings program
return its funding to the governor's original proposed
budget. She stressed that the program was essential for
young children's devel opnent. She explained that the Delta
| magi nation Library could not function w thout funding from
t he Best Begi nnings grant program

3:25:46 PM

JASM NE WVELL, CO CHAIR, DELTA | MAG NATI ON LI BRARY, DELTA
(via teleconference), testified in support of reinstating
funding for the Best Beginnings program She stressed that
the Imagination Library depended on funds from the Best
Begi nnings  grant pr ogram She explained that Best
Begi nni ngs was approxi mately 60 percent of the |nagination
Li brary's budget. She shared that 200 <children were
enrolled in the Delta Imagination Library, and in order to
serve those children, adequate funding was necessary to
continue the program

3:28: 48 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



ROSE LCERA, CITY MANAGER, DI LLINGHAM (via teleconference),

testified in support of the $2 mllion for comunity and
regional jails, and continued funding for community revenue
sharing. She stated that Dillingham was a transportation

hub, so the jail felt the burden of many out of town
perpetrators. The Dillingham jail had an eight bed capacity
and often operated over capacity. She stated that
Dillingham could not operate prograns that cannot be
financially supported. She stressed that the community jail
funding would allow for the Dillinghamis budget to be
bal anced.

3:33:51 PM

DAN PASQUARI ELLQ, CH EF OF PQOLICE, DI LLI NGHAM  (vi a
t el econference), spoke in support of the $2 nillion for
comunity and regional jails, and continued funding for
comunity revenue sharing. He explained that the Dillingham
jail was often over capacity, because D llingham was a
transportation hub. He stated that the D llingham jail

often held inmates from neighboring comunities. He
announced that Dillingham was a crimnal justice hub, and
stressed that Dillingham would appreciate conpensation for

t he actual cost of housing inmates.

3:33:51 PM

ROBI N  CHANEY, SELF, DI LLINGHAM (via teleconference),
testified in support of restoring $137,000 for Best
Begi nnings. She stated that there were over 200 children in
DI lingham who were enrolled in the D llingham |Inmagination
Li brary program and received a book each nonth in the
mai |l . She stated that many villages do not have any access
to books for children. She stressed that the |magination
Library was the only source for early childhood education
in many Al askan conmmuniti es.

3:36: 03 PM

JEAN ELLI'S, PRESIDENT, PETERSBURG BOROUGH SCHOOL DI STRI CT,
PETERSBURG (vi a tel econference), spoke against the $250, 000
reduction in the DEED budget, and further supported an
i ncrease the governor's proposed DEED budget. She stressed
that education costs were growi ng, but education was an
essential part of the budget-as it is nandated in the
constitution. She stressed that many conmunities could not
function properly wthout proper education funding. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



felt that education expectations were growing, while
education fundi ng was decr easi ng.

3:38:13 PM

MARLENE  CUSHI NG, WOVEN  AGAI NST VI OLENCE EVERYWHERE
PETERSBURG (via teleconference), spoke in support of
funding for donestic violence prevention and intervention
She expl ai ned that Wnen Agai nst Viol ence Everywhere (WAVE)
had a broad base of support, including |aw enforcenent and
mental health providers. She stressed that funding was
necessary for volunteers to provide services that included
advocating and safe haven for «clients. She felt the
donmestic violence prevention and intervention funding woul d
help in continuing to help donmestic violence victinms and
famlies of victins.

3:40: 01 PM

SUNNY RICE, COCRDI NATOR, ALASKA YOUNG FI SHERMEN S SUWM T,
SITKA (via tel econference), testified in support of funding
for the Young Fishernen's Sunmmit in the University of
Al aska (UA budget . She explained that the  Young
Fishermen's Sunmit was a cooperative effort wth the
fishing industry. Comrercial fishing groups and other
i ndustry nenbers worked with the Young Fishernmen's Sumnmt
to help provide basic funding, and help participants wth
travel costs. She encouraged the networking anong new
entrants and industry |eaders that were provided through
t he Al aska Young Fishernmen's Summt.

3:41:51 PM

JERRY  STUBER, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference),
opposed budget cuts for nental health care funding. He
stressed that the costs for nental health treatnment would
be shifted to nore costly prograns |ike health care and
public safety. He felt that all Al askan comunities needed
ment al health care funding.

3:42:40 PM

KIM KI LKENNY, CLI N Cl AN, PETERSBURG MENTAL HEALTH SERVI CES,
PETERSBURG (vi a tel econference), spoke in opposition to the
$8.3 mllion behavioral health budget reduction. She stated
that Petersburg had experienced a lock down for three
separate gun and other violent threats against nunerous

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



residents, including children. She announced that she had
assisted the police in a stand-off wth an intoxicated,
sui cidal, hom cidal individual. She pointed out the heroin
epidemic in Petersburg. She felt that behavioral health
funding could assist in intervention and prevention of
t hese community probl ens.

3:43:58 PM

MAX WWORHATCH, PRESI DENT, UNI TED SQUTHEAST ALASKA
G LLNETTERS, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified
agai nst the $550,000 budget cut for stock identification.
He stressed that port sanpling would allow managers to
adjust fishing time, and adjust to maxi mum possi bl e vyields.
He stated that code wire tag codes, identified through port
sanpling, allowed managers to assess wld Coho salnon
nunbers, enabling the managers to adjust fishing tine to
all ow for adequate escapenment and maxi mum sustai ned vyi el d.
He stated that, because of port sanpling, a mxed stock
fishery in Chatham Strait had nanagers who were able to
identify Coho and Sockeye sal non stock bound for the Upper
Lynn Canal and Taku. He stressed that identifying the
Sockeye stocks allowed managers to prosecute a Pink sal non
fishery, while closely nonitoring Sockeye sal non returns.

3:45:34 PM

BRI AN LYNCH, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, PETERSBURG VESSEL OWNERS,
PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified against the
$550, 000 budget cut for the Southeast Port Sanpling
Program He felt the funds were critical to the region's
managenent of all sal non species and fisheries in Southeast
Al aska. The loss of funding would greatly reduce the
Department of Fish and Ganme's (DFG ability to sustainably
manage Al aska's commercial fisheries, and would likely
result in reduced fishing opportunities. This budget could
also result in significant economc harm to fishermn,
Sout heast Al aska comunities, and Al aska's overall economc
heal t h.

3:47:33 PM

DR ROBERT THOVASON, SUPERI NTENDENT, PETERSBURG BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRI CT, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified
in support of increasing the base student allocation (BSA).
He remarked that it was currently the fourth consecutive
year that the BSA had renmmined flat. Each of the preceding

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



years, one-tine funds had been provided outside the BSA to
assist in funding district operations. He felt that one-
time funding made is difficult for districts to budget and
plan for the future, which placed undue stress on district
per sonnel .

3:49:16 PM

SUSAN OHMER, DI RECTOR, PETERSBURG MENTAL HEALTH SERVI CES
PETERSBURG (via teleconference), spoke against the $8.3
mllion behavioral health budget reduction. She understood
that funds needed to be utilized wisely, and felt that
behavi oral health funding was necessary. She expl ai ned that
the proposed budget cut would cut the Petersburg Mental
Heal th Services budget by one-third. She stated that the
one-third cut would result in a loss of three service
providers. She stressed that Petersburg faced a nental
health and substance abuse crisis. She explained that the
death rate in Petersburg was over eight tinmes the state
average. She pointed out that Petersburg was a small town
that experienced homicide and suicide rates that were
unusual for such a small town. She felt that treatnent
support, and violence intervention were necessary to
Pet ersburg. She stressed that cutting the budget would not
keep Al askans safe. She reiterated that reducing the budget
for behavioral health care would result in diverting costs
to other departnents. She stated that since 2005,
Pet ersburg had recorded 32 recorded suicide attenpts; four
drug-related deaths; and nultiple conmunity |ockdowns due
to death and mass-nurder threats.

3:52:17 PM

JERRY DZUGAN, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding the Alaska Marine Safety Education
Association. He explained that the safety of the famlies
of fisherman was inportant for all fishermen. He pointed
out that the skills that were taught in the class directly
affected the safety of many fishernen. He also voiced
support of funding the Young Fisherman's Summt. He felt
that the summt gave young people an edge in the fishing
i ndustry, by providing useful skills to succeed in the
fishing cormmunity and industry. He also voiced support of
the Fish to School program

3:55: 03 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



MARJORI E  HENNESSEY, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Fish and Farm to School
program She stressed that the Fish to School program
allowed children to eat and connect with l|ocal food, and
encour aged | ocal econom c growth. She remarked that fishing
was the agriculture of Sitka; and held significant
econom c, social, and cultural inportance to the people of
Sitka. The Fish to School program created awareness of food
security issues; inproved health by providing fresh seafood
to local students; supported the Ilocal fishernen; helped
students understand the value and inportance of |ocal food;
instilled a new way thinking about food; and encouraged the
comunity to question where their food originates.

3:56:10 PM

TRACY GAGNON, COORDI NATOR, FISH TO SCHOOL, SITKA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the Fish to School
program She stated that, because of a partnership with the
Farm to School program the Fish to School program was now
able to serve over 1500 students wth locally caught
seafood in the school [lunch program She remarked that
there was trenmendous success with the program and the
fourth year of funding was critical to the programs
success.

3:57: 09 PM

CLARI CE  JOHNSON, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference),
vocal i zed support for the Al aska Mirine Safety Education
Association and the Fish to Schools program She stated
that students were taught how to catch and process fish

She felt the program would help children understand the
i nportance of the local comercial fishing industry. She
stressed that her famly had directly benefited from the
Al aska Marine Safety Education Association. She furthered
that marine safety education kept children alive.

3:59:17 PM

ELLEN FRANKENSTEI N, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Fish to School program She
stated that she was a docunentary film maker, and had
observed the recent benefits of |local foods in comunities.
She also urged level funding for the Al aska Marine Safety
Educati on Associ ati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



4:00: 38 PM

GAYLE YOUNG SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the $8.3 mllion behavioral health  budget
reduction. She remarked that many behavioral health clients
were young children who may be dealing with Fetal Al cohol
Spectrum Di sorder (FASD). She remarked that FASD had nany
behavioral synptons, and <could directly benefit from
behavi oral health funding. She asserted that the funding
could help famlies of children with FASD, because the
funds would provide support and tools in assisting those
i ndi vidual s with FASD.

4:02:48 PM

LI SA BUSCH, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, SI TKA SOUND SCI ENCE CENTER

SITKA (via teleconference), testified in support of the
Fish Tech Program within the Maritinme Initiative of the UA
budget. She stressed that many Al askans | ove sal non and the
tradition of the commercial fishing industry. She felt that
the expansion in the budget was critical in strengthening
the Fish Tech Program which was already enhancing the
commercial fishing industry. She furthered that the program
offered classes based on the needs of the aquaculture
i ndustry, and the expansion would benefit students who were
living in small communities. The program would train and
support individuals in places |like D llingham Wangell,

and Sitka. She also urged support of the Alaska Mrine
Saf ety Educati on Associ ati on.

4:04:41 PM

LEE BENNET, DI RECTOR, SITKA COVMUNI TY HOSPI TAL, SITKA (via
tel econference), testified in support of continued funding
for trauma care. He explained that the Sitka Comunity
Hospi t al provi ded care of al | patients wi t hout
di scrimnation. He explained that the funding would update
and maintain equipnment; and provide new positions at the
Sitka Comunity Hospital. He stated that the Sitka
Community Hospital provided 24/7 energency room coverage;
and anticipated approximtely 200 energency room visits in
2013. He added that it was anticipated that the Sitka
Community Hospital would provide about $1.5 nillion of
unconpensated care for patients that were presented as
uninsured or underinsured. He stressed that the funding
woul d provide the ability to keep the charges as they are,
wi th no increase.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



4:06: 35 PM

FRED FAYETTE, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), testified
in support of the Fish to School. He felt that children
should be educated about the health benefits of eating
fish. He stated that he had personally contributed to the
Fish to Schools program He remarked that his donation was
taken from his cold storage that was intended to be sold.
He felt that his donation was a valuable investnent,
because the education that the Fish to Schools program was
i nval uable. He shared that he had observed sone students
while they ate the fish, and felt that the children were
enthusiastic in understanding how the fish were caught and
processed. He also urged support for funding the Al aska
Marine Safety Educati on Associ ati on.

4:08: 27 PM

SCOIT WAGNER, REPRESENTATIVE, NORTHERN SOUTHEAST REG ONAL
AQUACULTURE  ASSQOCI ATI ON, SITKA (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Fish Tech Program within the
Maritime Initiative of the UA budget. He stressed that many
Al askans |ove salnmon and the tradition of the conmercial
fishing industry. He felt that the expansion in the budget
was critical in strengthening the Fish Tech Program which
was already helping the comrercial fishing industry. He
furthered that the program offered classed based on the
needs of the aquaculture industry, and the expansion would
benefit students who were living in small comunities. The
program woul d train and support individuals in places like
Dllingham Wangell, and Sitka. He also urged support of
the Al aska Marine Safety Education Associ ati on.

4:09:26 PM

DORRIE  FERRELL, VEMBER, EASTER  GROUP, SITKA (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for
behavioral health. She explained that the Easter group
worked directly with the honeless, and those individuals
who were at risk of honel essness. She felt that behaviora
health funding benefitted Sitkans Against Famly Violence,
the Youth Advocates of Sitka, the Sitka police, the Sitka
Li brary, and the trauma care at the hospital. She stressed
that the Youth Advocates of Sitka were successful at
serving youth who had left their homes, and were trying to
conpl ete school wthout maturity or skills to succeed in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



the adult world. She felt that prevention and nediation
that the youth advocates offered were vital to the
comunity. She wurged the commttee to fully fund the
behavi or heal t h budget.

4:11: 48 PM

SUE HILL, PRESIDENT, ASSCCIATION OF ALASKA SCHOOL BQOARDS,

FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of
DEED fundi ng. She remarked that she expected the
| egislature to produce a responsible and conservative
budget. She shared that her famly had experienced a
financial crisis, but her famly was strategic in how
prioritize their spending. She shared the four principles
that her famly used in their budget strategy: cover the
rising costs of essentials; maintain preventive health care
like dental care and immuni zations; targeted professiona

devel opnent in equipnent t hat would translate into
additional dollars; and cut or nothball parts of their
business and famly that were nice, but not necessary. She
urged the commttee to follow those sanme guidelines wth
t he budget. She stressed that education costs were grow ng,

but education was an essential part of the budget, as it is
mandated in the constitution. She remarked that even wth
an addition of $100 per student, Fairbanks would still feel

the pressure to increase class sizes. She also urged
support of Best Begi nnings and Parents as Teachers.

4:14: 41 PM

STEVE BRADSHAW TEACHER, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding for DEED. He felt that there were
many new state standards that required funding. He
suggested that poverty issues directly related to nental
health issues. He wurged support of funding behavioral
health programs. He remarked that, in light of recent
events in Newtown, Connecticut, it was the wong tine to
reduce the state's nental health care budget. He stressed
that every school in the state had sone |evel of concern
regarding an individual who nmy not be taking their
medi cation, which would result in possible fatalities. He
remarked that oil conpanies were given tax cuts; so
educational and health needs should be given adequate
f undi ng.

4:16:52 PM
AT EASE

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



4:25:18 PM
RECONVENED

HOVER, KENAI, KETCH KAN, KODI AK, MAT-SU, GLENNALLEN, TOK
AND SEWARD

TOM DORAN, SELF, SEWARD, asked the conmttee to renobve
i ntent | anguage that woul d take annual standby ferry passes
away from Al aska Marine H ghway enployees. He stressed that
t he passes did not cost the state noney.

SUSAN SMALLEY, SELF, KENAlI (via teleconference), testified
in support of tobacco cessation funding. She stressed that
Alaska was a leader in its efforts to reduce tobacco use
She spoke about the tobacco conpanies and their marketing
techniques. She strongly encouraged the conmttee to
provi de funding for tobacco prevention.

4:28: 00 PM

KATIE WALES, PENI NSULA  COVMUNI TY  HEALTH, KENAI (via
tel econference), advocated for continued behavioral health
services funding. She and others ran a psycho-social
recovery center that provided services to individuals with
mental illness and substance abuse issues. She spoke about
the benefits of the center. She believed that wthout the
center, clients would be at risk for institutionalization

going to jail, using energency room services nore
frequently, and other.

4:30: 01 PM

TWYLA BENTLEY, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified
in favor of an increase in funding for behavioral health
services. She shared a personal story and her successes
resulting from the program at Peninsula Conmunity Health.
She stated that she was president of a group that advocated
for community events. She spoke about her many skills built
with the help of her care coordinator. She transitioned
t hroughout the system successfully.

4:33:10 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



MARGARET PARRCT, SELF, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference),
testified in support of behavi or al health services
i ncluding the Cottonwood Behavioral Health services and the
Birchwood Center. She noted that the community support
hel ped her neet her goal of reentering the work force. She
worried that w thout the progranms she woul d backslide and
that her suicide desires nay overcone her. She inplored the
commttee to maintain proposed funding for the services.

4:34:46 PM

LUCY GRAHAM SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
support of nmental health services funded wth state
dollars. She shared information about her personal battle
with mental illness. She revealed that she |earned much
from her classes at the facility. She stated that the
facility encouraged sobriety and helped her to feel good
about hersel f.

4:37:01 PM

TINA DRAPER, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), opposed
funding cuts to behavioral health services. She stated that
she benefitted greatly from the services; wthout the
services she would be honeless or in jail. The services at
Peni nsula Community Health made her feel safe. She noted
that decreased funding had a negative effect on nultiple
citizens. She nentioned the variety of services provided.

4:39: 06 PM

SAMMY CRAWORD, BOARD MEMBER, KENAI  PENI NSULA BOROUCH
SCHOOL BOARD, KENAI (via teleconference), expressed concern
about cuts to education funding. She stressed the
i nportance of support for the state's districts given new
state standards and teacher evaluations. She believed that
the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opment (DEED)
budget shoul d be increased rather than decreased. The board
was also concerned about bond debt reinbursement. She
opined that it was inportant for the |legislature to
continue providing reinbursement support. She spoke about
t he capi tal budget i ncrenments for maj or deferred
mai nt enance.

4:41: 04 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



MARY TOUTONGHI, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified
in favor of increased funding for early childhood
education. She pointed to successes of the Head Start
program She stated that her children received an excell ent
education in her district. She spoke about her children's
acconplishnents. She stated that a reduction in funding or
increase in teacher/pupil ratio would negatively inpact the
children and their education.

4:43:54 PM

JOE CANNAVA, DI RECTOR, PENI NSULA COVWMUNI TY HEALTH SERVI CES,
KENAI (via teleconference), testified in support of funding
for Dbehavioral health services. He stressed that the
funding sources were essential to retaining services in the
area. He stated that the agency used a proactive approach

which reduced the need for energency room services. He
added that the cost to the state was reduced as a result of
the agency's services. He urged the conmttee to maintain
$8.3 million in the budget for behavioral health services.

4:46: 03 PM

MELI SSA BAKER, STUDENT, KENAI PENI NSULA COLLEGE (KPQ)
KENAI (via teleconference), testified in support of
education funding. She believed that the cuts would inpact
the ability for students to be well educated. She spoke
about the negative inpact on children when education
fundi ng was cut.

4:47: 06 PM

SHAUNA THORTON, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA ANCHORAGE, COALITION
STUDENT LEADERS, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
favor of funding for the university and for DEED. She spoke
to the power of the stories offered in the oprior
t estinoni es. She believed that education cuts were
detrinental to the state's future workforce.

4:49: 06 PM

PETE SPRAGUE, KPC, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
favor of funding for the University of Al aska, KPC, and for
the annual operation and naintenance of the Career and
Technical Center. The new facility was geared towards
wor kf or ce devel opnent progr ans i ncl udi ng process
technol ogy, conputer electronics, and other. He stated that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



the Board of Regents had budgeted $296,000 to operate the
facility, but the legislative subcommttee process deleted
the increnment from the budget. He respectively requested
restoration of funds for the Career and Technical Center.

4:50: 57 PM

SCOr WHEAT, SELF, HOMER (via tel econference), testified in
favor of the Independent Living Center's Total Recreation
and Independent Living Services (TRAILS) funding. He
believed nore noney would be saved through prevention
services than with belated treatnent. He relayed that he
had received federal and state benefits; he hoped to pay
back the state. He reiterated his support for funding
prevention servi ces.

4:52:14 PM

KIM BURROWS, | NDEPENDENT LI VING CENTER, HOVER (via
tel econference), read a letter on behalf of an independent
living consuner. She testified in support of funding for
i ndependent centers in Alaska. She stated that the center
was essential for her husband who suffered a spinal cord
injury. She pointed to the professionalism and conpassion
of the workers. She noted that nmany workers were
vol unteers. She spoke about poor attitudes regarding
di sabl ed people. Funding cuts would take away independence
for many inpacted individuals.

4:55:34 PM

ELANNA SENA, PARENT, HOVER (via teleconference), testified
in favor of the Parents as Teachers prograns. She shared a
personal story about parenting a child with special needs.
She spoke about the home visits and the benefits of the
advocacy services. She stated that the support allowed her
to remain in Honer. She added that nmany comunities in
Al aska |acked the services. She noted that the program
all owed her son a bright future as opposed to another nore
dire option. She saw the programas a life |ine.

5:00: 42 PM

RI CK MALLEY, | NDEPENDENT LIVING CENTER (I1LC), HOMVER (via
tel econference), testified in support of the governor's
proposed $100,000 increase to the independent |iving center
budget. He stressed that every bit of funding helped. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



stated that the center provided recreational opportunities
to seniors and people with disabilities. The organization
provi ded counseling and advocacy for individuals. He asked
the committee to maintain the governor's proposed |LC
i ncrenment .

5:02: 24 PM

RACHEL ROVBERG HAVEN HOUSE, HOMVER (via teleconference),
requested restoration of funding for Best Beginnings and
Parents as Teachers to the governor's proposed anount. She
spoke about the benefits of the programs and the support
offered by the options. The prograns offered famlies wth
chances for health, happiness, and success that they my
not otherwi se have. She worked for a donestic violence
agency and she saw the difference that early chil dhood
prograns made for wonen and children in the shelter

5:04:46 PM

LI Z DOWNI NG KPC, HOVER (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for education. She discussed that the
university budget required additional funding. She stated
that KPC had needed a student advisor for years, but had
never received the funding. She spoke to school enroll nment
i ncreases. She stressed that the advisor position would
hel p students succeed.

5:07:21 PM

ROBERT LETSOQN, SOUTH PENI NSULA  HOSPI TAL, HOMER (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding the state
trauma fund and for Level 4 trauma facilities. He nmentioned
the various costs required to open the trauna center. He
shared that the hospital's trauma preparation had cone a
long way in the past two years as a result of the trauma
care fund. He believed cutting funds would be short-sighted
when hospitals had come so far the past few years.

5:09: 00 PM

SUSAN DRATHMAN, SOUTH PENI NSULA BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH SERVI CES,
HOVER (via teleconference), testified in favor of funding
of nental health services. She spoke about comunity
menbers needing to |eave the community to receive services
in other areas; the situation was difficult on famlies.
She spoke about the costliness and the negative outcones of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 33 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



institutional care. She spoke about the Bring the Kids Hone
program that existed to bring honme children who have been
in out of state institutions. She spoke in support of
Conpl ex Behavi or Col | aborati ve.

5:12: 33 PM

RACHELLE MCALEXANDER, KACHEMAK BAY COLLEGE, HOVER (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding a student
success advisor at the college. She was a cancer patient as
a result of serving in nmultiple wars. She stated that she
was inspired by an article she read in AARP mmgazine
related to seniors returning to school. She shared that the
student advisor had helped her determne the right path
related to classes and financial assistance. She requested
funding to keep advisors in place.

5:14: 37 PM

BONNI E BETLEY, BEST BEG NNI NGS, HOMER (via tel econference),
requested restoration of funding for the Best Beginnings
and Parents as Teachers prograns to the governor's proposed
| evel. Parents as Teachers was one of the few prograns
offering honme visits. She shared that one of the nost
successful ways to decrease donestic violence and negative
chi | dhood experiences was honme visiting. She stressed that
reduced funds would have adverse effects. She encouraged
the commttee to fund the increnent at the governor's
proposed | evel .

5:17:16 PM

MARI A CALHOUN, SPROUT, HOMER (via tel econference), spoke in
favor of restoring funds for Best Begi nnings. She discussed
provi ding services in honmes for areas that were underserved
and renote. She shared that the group partnered with a
| ocal donestic violence agency. She shared that Sprout
would serve 90 famlies in March. She believed the
potential for |ife-long success was greater when early
education was provided. She urged the conmittee to continue
funding for children.

5:20:39 PM

M CHAEL HORTON, BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH, COPPER CENTER (via
tel econference), spoke against the proposed $8.3 nillion
cut to behavioral health services. He referred to high

House Fi nance Conmmittee 34 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



al coholism and suicide rates in the state. He shared that
suicide rates had been reduced due to prevention prograns.
The state continued to be nunber one for conpleted suicides
and had high rates of domestic violence and Fetal Al cohol
Spectrum Di sorder. He urged the conmttee to reconsider the
cuts to behavioral health grants.

5:24: 46 PM

VI CTORI A Kl LDAL, COUNSELOR, COPPER Rl VER NATI VE
ASSCOCI ATI ON, COPPER CENTER (via teleconference), testified
in opposition to cuts to behavioral health services. She
pointed to brain research showing that care and support
provi ded by services caused brain growh in patients. She
accentuated that wthout the services the growh was
unlikely to occur. She discussed nental health problens
i npacting individuals. She strongly urged the commttee to
mai ntai n fundi ng for behavioral health services.

5:26:19 PM

SHARRON ABLES, ONLINE WTH LIBRARIES (OAL), GLENNALLEN (via
tel econference), spoke in favor of OA program and |ive
homewor k help funding. She relayed that children who did
poorly were not exposed to as many words prior to
ki ndergarten as successful children. She shared that the
prograns were nmaking great strides in rural Alaskan
villages. She stressed the inportance of skilled and
educated people in the state. She strongly urged the
restoration of the governor's proposed funding.

5:28: 07 PM

SHERRI COX, CROSSROAD MEDI CAL  CENTER, GLENNALLEN (vi a
tel econference), spoke in support of the trauma care fund
and level 5 trauma center funding. Energency services had
been reduced due to a lack in funds. She stated that as of
March 31, 3013 federal funding had stopped. She encouraged
the commttee to keep the funding in place for energency
care.

5:30: 53 PM

LAURI E THOVAS, BEST BEG NNI NGS, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for Best
Begi nnings and Parents as Teachers. She stressed that the
funds were inportant to support safe placenent for young

House Fi nance Conmmittee 35 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



children in foster care. The comunity was working towards
a court program due to Best Beginnings. She relayed that
the program did not require financial qualifiers and
reduced stigma associated with other prograns. She asked
the commttee to consider funding at the governor's
proposed | evel .

5:33:41 PM

LANETTA LUNDBERG KETCHI KAN MEDI CAL CENTER, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), spoke against decreased funding for the
Alaska Area Health Education Center increment in the
University of Alaska budget. She pointed to decreased
federal funding. She enphasized the inportance of a strong
and healthy healthcare workforce in the state. She rel ayed
that residents would continue to need healthcare services.
She asked the commttee to maintain the governor's proposed
i ncrenent in the budget.

5:35:47 PM

BI LL AUCGER, COMVERCI AL FI SHERVAN, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), was opposed to cuts to the conmmercial
fishing industry. He stated that federal pacific salnon
treaty funds had been supplenenting state general funds. He
pointed to inportant tax revenue provided by the fishing
i ndustry. He enphasized that fisheries should be nanaged
for the maximumreturn to the state.

5:37:15 PM

EMLY CHAPEL, SAI L, KETCH KAN (via tel econference),
vocal i zed opposition to cuts to independent living centers.
She shared services provided by the organization that net
the needs of disabled individuals. The organi zati on worked
to neet the growi ng needs of disabled individuals and the
seni or popul ation. She asked the legislature to restore the
$100, 000 i ncrenent to the program

5:38:23 PM

KEVI N GADSEY, SAIL, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), spoke
in favor of funding for SAIL. He explained that there had
been construction projects buil t in Ketchikan and
disability access had not initially been included; the
itens had been fixed due to a request by SAIL. He pointed
to the difficulty individuals with disabilities had wth

House Fi nance Conmmittee 36 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



the court system the organization had helped the
i ndi vi dual s sol ve the issue.

5:40: 20 PM

PATRICIA CHAPMAN, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
spoke against cuts for behavioral health and for traumatic
brain injury funding. She was in favor of Conplex Behavi or
Col | aborative funding. The services provided tools for
famlies and helped individuals. She relayed that the
increnent would help stop abuse. She explained that many
individuals had tried to commt suicide as a result of past
behavi or that was enbarrassing. She stated that the funding
woul d support four to five times nore people in their hone
comunities. She asked the conmttee to keep the funding in
the budget for the health and traumatic brain injury
progr ans.

5:43:38 PM

JESSI CHAPMAN, SELF, KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), spoke
in favor of traumatic brain injury funding. She used an
augnented voice device to testify as a result of a
traumatic brain injury. She shared her personal frustration
with her inability to respond quickly to questions. She
stated that if funding was cut there would be fewer
resources available to help individuals with brain injuries
to overcone frustration and anger caused by their injuries.
She wurged the comittee to restore the funding for
traumatic brain injury program and the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative program

5:44:58 PM

CHARLES HABERBUSH, SELF, KETCHI KAN (via teleconference),
spoke in support of funding for the traumatic brain injury
program He shared his personal experience with a traumatic
brain injury. He stated that it was difficult to rely on
others for help. He detailed that because of SAIL he had
spent many nont hs | earning about the brain; t he
organi zati on had connected himwi th the Al aska Brain Injury
Network. He was working to reach others in need. He
enphasi zed the inportant support provided by SAIL. He
continued to share experiences related to brain injury. He
asked the conmttee to restore funding for brain injury
resour ces.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 37 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



5:48: 47 PM

JOS GOVAARS, SELF, KETCHI KAN (via tel econference), spoke in
support of SAIL and traumatic brain injury funding. He
enphasi zed the significant |evel of support that SAIL
provided to the comunity.

5:49: 25 PM

BOBBI E  MCCREARY, SELF, KETCHI KAN, requested continued
funding for the Conplex Behavior Collaborative that served
people with traumatic brain injury. She spoke about her
personal experience as a friend of a person wth a
traumatic brain injury. She shared that support training
was critical to helping individuals wth injuries. She
communi cated that funding had allowed individuals to avoid
institutional care.

5:51:18 PM

VI KKI JO KENNEDY, SELF, KODI AK (via teleconference), spoke
in opposition to funding for the Alaska Aerospace
Corporation. She adnonished the legislature for its tine
spent on HB 69; she stated the bill would pit local |aw
enforcement against federal agents regarding federal gun
| aws. She believed the Al aska Aerospace Corporation was a
nmoney pit. She recomended providing the funding to
behavioral health instead. She provided a quote. She spoke
i n support of education.

5:54: 22 PM

VALARI E KI NGSLAND, ALASKA ASSOCI ATI ON OF SCHOOL LI BRARIES
SEWARD (via teleconference), spoke in support of Ilibrary
funding. She requested full financial support for the OAL
project and live homework help. She was in support of the
onl i ne education program She spoke in support of broadband
services to rural conmmunities in the state.

5:56:16 PM

MELI NDA MATIS, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference), read a
letter on behalf of Carla Nornman who was unable to speak
due to a traumatic brain injury. She shared Ms. Norman's
story related to her brain injury. She had been able to
nmove out of a nursing home, which had saved the state
noney. She stressed that her ability to |eave the nursing

House Fi nance Conmmittee 38 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



home had saved the state over $100,000 per year. She spoke
in support of the $100,000 increment for the traumatic
brain injury.

5:57:49 PM

KEVIN  MJUNSON, MAT-SU HEALTH  SERVI CES, WASI LLA (via
tel econference), vocalized opposition to behavioral health
services cuts. He stressed that cuts wuld increase
energency room visits, incarceration, and placenent of
individuals in out of state institutions. He shared that
early childhood trauna had significant inpacts on the lives
of individuals; reduced funding woul d decrease individuals'
Iifespans. He urged the commttee to reconsider cuts.

6: 00: 23 PM

KELLY  MCBRI DE, MAT-SU SCHOOL DISTRICT, WASILLA (via
tel econference), encouraged restoration of funds for Best
Begi nni ngs, Parents as Teachers, and other early education
prograns. She pointed to Head Start waiting lists. She
stressed the inportance of public and private partnerships
with state and |ocal support. She was surprised to see how
much the budget included for the Department of Corrections
conpared to funds included for the Departnment of Education
and Early Developnent. She pointed to long-term planning
for the education of the state's children.

6: 01: 59 PM

JIM BECK, ACCESS ALASKA, PALMER (via teleconference), was
opposed to cuts to the independent Iliving program in
Al aska. He shared that the program was 20 percent state
funded. He strongly urged the conmttee to restore the
$100, 000 increnment for independent living and to restore
behavioral health cuts. He asked the conmttee to support
funds for the traumatic brain injury program and other. He
urged funding for the Conpl ex Behavi or Coll aborati ve.

6: 04:59 PM

ESTRELLA LEE, PAT COORDI NATOR, HOVER (via tel econference),
spoke in favor of pre-k funding and the Parents as Teachers
progr am She explained that the prograns increased
graduation rates and helped people to be better parents
when they grew up. She discussed the inportance of parent
education related to prenatal care and other. She stated

House Fi nance Conmmittee 39 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



that early childhood prograns hel ped reduce costs to the
child welfare system She encouraged support for the
progr amns.

6: 07:25 PM

RUTH ALLI SON REYNOLDS, BEST BEG NNI NGS, HOVER (via
tel econference), testified in support of Best Beginnings
and Parents as Teachers. She shared her personal experience
parenting a child with devel opnental delays. She stressed
that the Parents as Teachers program had hel ped her provide
her daughter with the services she needed.

6: 08: 58 PM

DAVE BRANDI NG CH EF EXECUTIVE OFFI CER, SOUTH PEN NSULA
BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH SERVICES, HOVER (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for behavioral health
servi ces and against the proposed $8.3 nillion reduction to
the services. He detailed that the grant funds primarily
went to energency services in Homer. He spoke about the
needs of people wthout health insurance, who had no
alternative funding sources. He spoke about the funding for
the departnment For Behavioral Health. He was concerned
about the reduction of funds for the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative. He accentuated that services dramatically
i mproved the quality of |ife for inpacted individuals and
their famlies.

6:11: 08 PM

JILL LUSH, DI RECTOR, SPROUT FAMLY SERVICES, HOVER (via
tel econference), urged the commttee to restore funding for
the Best Beginnings and Parents as Teachers prograns. She
stated that raising children in Al aska was chall enging; she
pointed to parents that worked long hours and famlies
living in renote areas. She spoke about the concerns
addressed by Parents as Teachers. She relayed that hone
visitors provided devel opnental support for children

encouraged social connections and other. She requested
rei nstatenent of funding proposed in the governor's budget.

6:13: 23 PM

SONJA MARK, LI BRARI AN, DI LLI NGHAM PUBLI C LI BRARY,
DI LLI NGHAM (via teleconference), testified in support of
broadband and the Alaska OAL project. She shared that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 40 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



internet access connected the renpte community with the
rest of the world. She urged full funding for the Al aska
ONL project along with the live homework help for rural
st udent s.

6: 14: 39 PM

KAY ANDREWS, SOUTHWEST REG ON SCHOOL DI STRI CT, DI LLI NGHAM
(via teleconference), asked the commttee to restore the
$5.7 mllion cut to the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent budget. She enphasized that every bit of
fundi ng hel ped children for progranms such as pre-k, digital
| earning, or Jobs for Alaska's Gaduates. She stated that
the Southwest Region School District is an Al aska Rural
Education Attendance Area and served seven school sites,
but the district was only able to provide pre-k prograns at
three of the schools. She spoke about the increase in
graduation rates. She spoke to the critical nature of the
f undi ng.

6:17: 07 PM

MARY JO JO NER, DI RECTOR, KENAI COVMUNI TY LIBRARY, KENAI
(via teleconference), spoke in favor of full funding for
education including broadband, the Al aska OAL project, and
for live homework help. She pointed to the broad range of
educational opportunities supported by the OAN project;
i nproved bandwi dth allowed access to state and federal e-
government services. The funds |everaged $2 mllion of
f eder al funding for bandw dth. She added that the
restoration of the funding would allow online tutoring
service for students. She stated that honmework assistance
for multiple subjects was al so an advant age.

6: 20: 05 PM

M KE FROST, KPC, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
support for university funding as proposed by the
University of Alaska Board of Regents. He spoke about three
aspects of the university operations that would be affected
by the cuts. He communicated that the cuts would elimnate
KPC s student advisor who kept students on track wth
cl asses and career paths. OQher itens that would be cut
were the safety and security position and operating funds
for the Career and Technical Center.

6:21: 19 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 41 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



DAVE JONES, ASSI STANT SUPERI NTENDENT, KPBSD, KENAI (via
t el econf erence), testified in favor of funding for
education and 21 additional Al aska State Trooper positions.
He requested the restoration of funding for all of the
proposed positions. School safety in Kenai and across the
state woul d benefit fromthe restoration of the funding.

6: 22: 48 PM

PH LLIP MLLER, KPC, COOPER LANDI NG (via teleconference),
voi ced support for wuniversity funding. He appreciated the
support provided to the University of Alaska in previous
years. He communicated that KPC had wused deferred
mai nt enance funding to repair |eaky roofs, replace single
pane w ndows, replacenment of old boilers, and other. The
state finances were conplicated, but the university was
worthy of financial support. He asked the commttee to
fully fund the Board of Regents budget request for FY 14.

6: 24: 24 PM

BOB MARTI N, COVVERCI AL FI SHERVAN, PETERSBURG (via
t el econf erence), testified in favor of salnmon stock
identification funding. He stressed that the funding was
vital to getting the npbst out of the state's salnon
resource. He stated that wthout stock identification
fisheries managers would be required to restrict fishing
opportunities. He enphasized that the fisheries nanagers
required crucial tools to get the nost out of the resource
W t hout threatening weak stocks.

6: 25: 30 PM

JOHN BRI NGHURST, PETERSBURG BCOROUGH SCHOOL DI STRICT,
PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified in favor of
increased funding for education. He supported the high
priority that President Cbama and Governor Parnell placed
on the education of young people. He felt that the priority
of the State of Alaska appeared to be el sewhere. He noted
that reduction of $250,000 in the education budget was of
great concern to Petersburg residents. He stated that if
t he budget continued to shrink, the insidious effects would
eventually beconme evident. He urged action and financial
support for education.

6:28: 05 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 42 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



JENNI FER RAY, SELF AND PARENT, PETERSBURG (via
tel econference), testified in support of full funding for
mental health funding. She shared a story about her
daughter who suffered from nental illness. Servi ces
provided by Petersburg Mental Health wee integral for her
daughter's growh and stability. The facility offered
counseling to help parents understand how to help their
children. She was working to bring the National Alliance on
Mental Illness Famly to Famly program to Petersburg. She
urged full funding for behavioral health services.

6:29: 53 PM

SARAH BELL, DI RECTOR, KETTLESON MEMORI AL LI BRARY, SITKA
(via teleconference), vocalized support for full funding of
the annual $761,000 increnent for the OAN program The
program provi ded broadband access to nost libraries across
the state. She shared an exanple of the use of OA to
schedul e a conference with the governor in Sitka. She noted
exanpl es of how the system was used throughout the state

She accentuated that during economc struggles, Ilibrary
access becane nore critical for many individuals. She
informed the comrittee that the funds |everaged $2 million

in federal e-rate funding. She nentioned online homework
hel p for students.

6: 32: 43 PM

DENNI S LONGSTRETH, COMVERCI AL FI SHERVAN, SITKA (via
tel econference), testified in opposition to the Departnent
of Fish and Gane budget cuts. The cuts included $550,000 to
the port sanpling budget and the nuch needed bionetrician
position. He enphasized that port sanpling was critical for
salnon stock assessnent and in Pacific Salnon Treaty
functions; it would not be possible to harvest reasonable
nunbers of fish without identifying which stocks they cane
from He stated that the nmgjority of salnon nanagenent in
Sout heast was paid with federal salnon treaty funds. He
noted that the state had becone too dependent on the
federal funds, which were beginning to dimnish. He was
concerned about the decision to cut the bionetrician
posi tion.

6: 35: 48 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 43 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



JOHN BAI RD, GENERAL MANAGER, SITKA SOUND SEAFOODS, Sl TKA
(via teleconference), echoed the testinony of M.
Longstreth. He enphasized that the Departnent of Fish and
Ganme increnments were critical for aerial surveys and port
sanpling for fisheries. He urged the commttee to restore
the $550,000 increnment. He appreciated the comittee's
consi der ati on.

6: 36: 40 PM

GRETCHEN GEI ST, THRI VE MAT-SU PREVENTI ON COALI TI ON, MAT-SU
(via teleconference), testified in opposition funding cuts
to the statewi de underage drinking nedia canpaign. She
shared statistics related to youth reports of drinking and
access to alcohol. She stressed the inportance of outreach
to convey the inpact alcohol had on youths. The canpaign
woul d al so use funds from ot her sources.

6: 38:45 PM

CELI A HARRI SON, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), voiced
support for nental health funding. She stressed that the

proposed $8.3 mllion cuts to the Dbehavioral heal t h
services budget was disturbing and shaneful. She stated
that individuals inpacted by nental health issues were not
responsible for their illnesses. She accentuated that

society should provide a hel ping hand. She questioned why
individuals with nental health problens should have to
prison due to a lack of support. She spoke to the high
costs of prison in conparison to treatnment services. She
spoke about other negative inpacts surrounding prison and
| ack of nental health services. She stated that the reality
was well docunented and she wondered about the notives of
state decision makers. She appreciated hearing the prior
testinmony related to nental health.

6:41:12 PM

ELI ZABETH Rl PLEY, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, MAT-SU  HEALTH
FOUNDATI ON, MAT-SU (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for prevention of substance abuse. The
Al aska Wellness Coalition ainmed to change the way that the
i ssues were discussed in the state. She nentioned the goa

to reduce underage drinking in Al aska. She spoke about
conserving resources and expanding the reach. She pointed
to the costly inpact of alcohol and drug abuse in 2010. The
| egislature had nmade a special $9 mllion appropriation in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 44 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



FY 13 to address substance abuse. The organization had
invested funds to the issue with the understanding that the
state was also a critical funder. She spoke about an
intelligent investnment in the state. She urged the
commttee to closely examne cuts to ensure that increased
costs were not created and nore |ives were not harned.

Co-Chair Austerman CLOSED public testinony. He noted that
budget amendnents would be addressed the follow ng Mnday
aft ernoon.

HB 65 was HEARD and HELD in comrittee for further
consi derati on.

HB 66 was HEARD and HELD in comrittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

6:43: 35 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 6:44 p.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 45 03/06/13 1:32 P. M



